M NUTES
SENATE FI NANCE COW TTEE
May 05, 2001
9:14 AM

TAPES

SFC-01 # 97, Side A
SFC 01 # 97, Side B

CALL TO ORDER

Co-Chair Pete Kelly convened the neeting at approximately 9:14 AM
PRESENT

Senat or Pete Kelly, Co-Chair
Co- Chair Dave Donl ey

Senator Jerry Ward, Vice Chair
Senat or Al an Auster man

Senat or Donny O son

Senat or Lyman Hof f man

Al so Attending: REPRESENTATI VE JEANETTE JAMES; BOB LCEFFLER,
Director, Dvision of Mning, Land and Water, Department of Natural
Resour ces

Attendi ng via Tel econference: From Denali: JEFF KNUTCHNE, resident
of Stanpede Road; BRUCE LEE, operator of dog sled business; From
Fai rbanks: JCE FIELDS, President, Kantishna Hol dings, Inc.; From
Anchor age: NANCY BALE, Board Menber, Denali Citizens Counsel, 25-
year resident and enpl oyee of Denali Borough

SUMVARY | NFORMVATI ON

HB 244- Rl GHT- OF- WAY TO DENALI BOR. FOR RR/ UTI L.

The Committee heard from the sponsor, the Departnent of Natural
Resources, the Denali Borough and nenbers of the public. The bill
noved from Committ ee.

HB 65- MEDI CAL ASSI| STANCE: BREAST/ CERVI CAL CANCER

The Commttee heard from the Senate Health Educati on and Soci al
Services Comrittee. The bill noved from Conmittee.

SFC- 01 (1) 05/ 05/ 01



#HB244

SENATE CS FOR CS FOR HOUSE BILL NO 244( RES)

"An Act relating to a grant of state land to the Denali
Borough for a railroad and utility corridor and a railroad
devel opnent project; repealing provisions relating to a grant
of aright-of-way of land for a railroad and utility corridor
to the Alaska Industrial Devel opnent and Export Authority; and
providing for an effective date."”

REPRESENTATI VE JEANETTE JAMES testified the bill authorizes the
Denali Borough to identify and survey a right-of-way in an area
between Healy and Denali National Park for the purpose of a
railroad corridor. She remarked the intention is to expand the
right-of-way into the park itself. She infornmed that this project
"has been around for a long tinme" and that she has been working on
it for nine years.

Representative James rem nded of an authorization given several
years prior for the Departnent of Natural Resources to convey | and
across the 90,000-acre area referred to as WIf Townships. She
el aborated that within this land, a corridor could be identified
under the provisions of the earlier authorization and granted
through the Alaska Industrial Developnment and Export Authority
(Al DEA). However, she said this process was unsuccessful for a
variety of reasons and this legislation represented a new plan for
granting authority to the Denali Borough rather than Al DEA

Representative Janes explained the process of the Departnent of
Nat ural Resources working with the Denali Borough to identify a
corridor and any existing rights and uses within that corridor
after which, a survey could be perforned. Once the survey was
conpl eted, she continued, a maxi num anmount of 3,500 acres of |and
woul d be transferred from the Departnent of Natural Resources to
t he bor ough.

Representative Janes pointed out a sunset date of the year 2010
contained in the bill. She stated that if the Denali Borough has
not |leased the identified land to a party for the purpose of a
right-of-way into the edge of the park, the land would revert to
st at e owner shi p.

Representative Janmes surm sed that approxi mately 1,500 acres woul d
actually be transferred under this program She stressed this |and
would be considered as part of the Denali Borough's |and
entitlenent selection. She noted that to date, the borough has only
recei ved about half of its entitlenment |and.

SFC- 01 (2) 05/ 05/ 01



Representative Janmes noted several |ocal residents are concerned
over this matter and that she has nmade arrangenents to visit the
area on June 3, 2001 to "allay their fears"”. She assured a public
process woul d occur as one occurs with any right-of-way issue.

Co-Chair Kelly asked about the increased expenses in FY 05 shown on
the fiscal note.

Representative Janes ascertained this relates to the original
conpletion date of 2006 and noted the date has been extended,
through this legislation, to the year 2010. She said it was not her
intention to set an unrealistic deadline.

Senat or Austerman assuned it would be necessary to lay new rails
across this corridor.

Representative Janes affirmed and stated this project woul d connect
to the Alaska Railroad on one end. She informed that Kantishna
Hol dings, Inc. has been negotiating with the Al aska Railroad
Corporation as to where this connection would be |ocated. She
indicated there is a plan to construct a hotel in the conmunity of
Healy to serve passengers traveling along this route. She estinated
the length of the new route at approximately 40 mles to the
boundary of the park.

Senator Ward offered a notion to report the bill from Commttee.

It was noted that testinony was not concluded and the notion was
W THDRAWN wi t hout obj ecti on

BOB LCEFFLER, Director, Division of Mning, Land and Wter,
Departnent of Natural Resources testified that access to Denal
National Park could bring significant benefits to the state.
However, he remarked, the departnent has concerns that this bil
m ght not achi eve those benefits. He |isted four concerns on this
poi nt .

M. Loeffler spoke to the first concern that the bill conveys a
right-of-way to Kantishna Holdings, Inc. for one-third of the
di stance. He warned that w thout agreenent fromthe United States
Nat i onal Park Service over control of the renmaining two-thirds of
the land, no right-of-way could be established for this or any
other corridor. He explained that if the Denali Borough establishes
an "exclusive use corridor” for a railroad by Kantishna Hol di ngs,
Inc., other opportunities for access to the park would not be
consi dered. He recommended agreenent between "all players” before
the state commts to a specific corridor nechani smand devel oper

SFC- 01 (3) 05/ 05/ 01



M. Loeffler listed the second concern over public policy that
woul d essentially provide a legislative land grant to a single
private devel oper.

M. Loeffler stated that the bill thirdly, "unintentionally... my
put the borough in a poor marketing position with a private
devel oper."” He referenced |anguage that stipulates that if the
borough does not grant the land to Kantishna Hol dings, Inc. by a
certain date, ownership of the land returns to the state. He
cautioned that this limts the criteria the borough could place on
any agreenent with the corporation, because it is known there is a
consequence to the borough if no agreenent is reached.

M. Loeffler remarked, the final concern that the role of the
Departnent of Natural Resources is "anbiguous” in the |and transfer
process. He noted the legislation requires that the departnent
revi ew sel ecti ons nade by the borough, but exenpts the review from
standards in nunicipal entitlenent |law. He stressed that the bil
however, does not renove the departnent's obligation to determ ne
that disposal of this land to the borough is in the state's best
interest. He added that nunerous other obligations contained in
Title 38 of the Alaska State Statutes governing | and di sposal, are
al so not exenpt ed.

Co-Chair Kelly opined that if the Commttee addressed these four
concerns raised by the departnent, the comm ssioner would stil
oppose the | egislation.

M. Loeffler commented this was possible.

JEFF  KNUTCHNE, resident of Stanpede Road, testified via
tel econference fromDenali and told of the many visitors to his bed
and breakfast and sled dog tours establishnment. He spoke of
concerns wth protecting the renote atnosphere of his | ocation and
warned that this project would "ruin" his business. He inforned
that the |local honmeowners association, wth 160 |andowners
occupying land within the proposed corridor, is in opposition to
the devel opnent of the railroad in this area. He stated that this
project has had little input fromthe people affected the nost and
he questioned the public process related to this |and disposal
referring to the way the matter is listed as "old township
concerns” on agendas wthout nention of the Al aska Railroad
Corporation. He also told of the historical use of the area in
questi on.

BRUCE LEE, operator of dog sled business, testified via
tel econference fromDenali to oppose the bill on three points: how

SFC- 01 (4) 05/ 05/ 01



it wuld affect himpersonally, how it inpact subsistence and the
financial inplications. He told the Commttee about his cabin in a
renote area on | and that he obtained 26 years ago through the open
entry process but would be taken away from him under this
| egislation. He stated that there is little available land for
| ocal residents because the United States Park Service and Native
Corporations owmn nost of the land in the area. He requested that
consideration be given to the use of this land by caribou as a
preferred winter range and he stressed the inportance of
subsi stence. He did not agree with public lands being given to a
private "non-local, non-borough corporation” that has denonstrated
no history of operating such a | arge-scale operation. He opined it
is not "sound financial judgnent" for the state to place the
borough in this position. He disagreed with the assessnment that the
project is favored at a ratio of 15 residents to one, asserting
that he knew of only a few residents who support the proposal.

JOE FIELDS, President, Kantishna Holdings, Inc., testified via
tel econference from Fairbanks that the Commttee should be
concerned about the local residents’ issues, but that he thought
this legislation addresses them He stated that the township
consists of 100,000 acres and that this legislation would only
utilize 15,000 acres. He countered earlier argunents asserting that
there has been a public process on this matter for over nine years.
He noted the newy elected Denali Borough Assenbly, unaninmously
voted to endorse this legislation on April 8, 2001. He stressed
that while the | ocal residents mght see trains, these would not be
freight trains, but rather passenger trains carrying tourists.
Al so, he said, there would be no road crossings and acconpanyi ng
whi stl es at these crossings.

M. Fields qualified that he did not know what inpact this corridor
woul d have on subsistence, but he predicted it would not be nuch.
He stated he has tried to learn the nunber of caribou strikes by
train and although he didn't have an anount, the anounts seened
di fferent than noose strikes and different than areas with greater
snow | evel s.

M. Fields stated that the intent of this effort is for the study
of the corridor to create a northern access to Denali Nationa
Park. He told of an endorsenment given in 1994 by a national park
system advi sory board. He said consideration has been given to an
addi tional access route to the southern portion of the park but
that there is no funding in the Statewi de Transportation
| mprovenent Program (STIP) for actual construction of the entire
project for at |east six years.

M. Fields asserted that the northern access route woul d create 300

SFC- 01 (5) 05/ 05/ 01



to 900 jobs. He spoke of efforts to receive approval from the
United States Secretary of the Interior for the route, which he
said involves nore public process. He then stated this route woul d
reduce road traffic by 1,300 vehicles annually. He stressed that
this is "good sound devel opnment” and is environnmentally sound. He
remar ked that nmany people would be able to safely experience the
nat i onal park

Co-Chair Kelly comented, "This is, | think, a pretty exciting
project.” He understood that each time such a project is proposed,
sone people's lives are inpacted and that there is concern about
the extent of these changes. He stated this is a part of living in
a "growi ng state".

M. Fields expressed he is willing to neet with those residents
with concerns and to give them a tour of the proposed area and
detail the inpacts. He anticipated the actual |ocation of the
corridor would be south of nost of the trails the residents feel
are threatened. He added that it is unlikely the tracks could be
seen fromthe areas used by the guides. He said he wanted to have
di scussions with the coommunity "tal king honestly about their issues
and not getting all excited about how they are going to |ose their
rights to use the public land for free.™

Senator O son spoke as a small businessman and the need to protect
the ability to earn a living. He asked the previous two w tnesses
to describe how this project would adversely affect their business
operations. He wanted to know if they would go out of business.

M. Knutchne responded that the business would fail wthout access
to the renote cabins | ocated across fromthe proposed corridor. He
detailed the three and five day trips on the state-owned |and and
the areas of travel.

Co-Chair Kelly asked why the groups could not cross the railroad
t racks.

M. Knutchne asserted that the | anguage in this legislation "could
possibly elimnate" any conpeting business ventures in the
corridor.

Senator O son asked M. Fields if this is true and that M.
Knut chne woul d have no other way to access the cabins then across
t he right-of -way.

M. Fields did not think this would be the case. He assuned bri dges

and culverts would be built across the rivers and creeks but no
pl ans were yet nade to provide for railroad crossings. He explai ned

SFC- 01 (6) 05/ 05/ 01



that railroad crossings are possible, but are done at the
traveler's own risk. However, he stressed that there would be no
hi gh-speed trains operating on these tracks and that the proposed
passenger trains are conparatively lightweight. He knew of no
right-of-way or corridor that does not allow crossings. He opined
if the intent is to have sole access to conplete w |l derness, then
this intent is self-centered and unrealistic.

NANCY BALE, Board Menber, Denali G tizens Counsel, 25-year resident
and enpl oyee of Denali Borough, testified via tel econference from
Anchorage to contradict the claimthat a 15 to one ratio of borough
residents are favor of the project. She anticipated a | arge turnout
at the next borough assenbly neeting of residents against the
rail road access. She stated that there is significant opposition
| argel y because the residents have no say as to whether or not the
project would occur. Preferable, she said, is a consultated public
process.

Ms. Bal e began listing specific concerns over sone of the | anguage
in the commttee substitute, starting with page 2, line 4, "The
borough, in consultation with Kantishna Hol dings, Inc., shall also
identify and select ancillary land necessary to support the
devel opnment and operation of a railroad and facilities to support
econon ¢ devel opnent in conjunction with the railroad devel opnent
project." She shared that this is of particular concern to
resi dents because, although the right-of-way is only 300 feet w de,
there is no stipulation as the size of the ancillary |and. She
stressed that this provision contains, "so few controls that rail-
only is not even guaranteed” and that there is the possibility of a
road. She detailed the potential inpact on |ocal and subsistence
use of the |and.

Ms. Bale next referred to page, 2, lines 7 and 8, "The depart nent
shall review the selections within 90 days after the selections are
made." She asked if the departnent in question is the Departnent of
Nat ural Resources.

Co-Chair Kelly answered this is correct.

Ms. Bale asked if this review process would involve a best-interest
finding, or an in-house "paper review " She remarked that "lip
service" has been given that an environnental inpact statenent
woul d be conducted, but stressed that it is not guaranteed in the
bill, nor is a best interest finding.

Ms. Bale continued reading from page 2, line 10, ".the borough

shall survey the land." and enphasized that it is uncertain how
this woul d be funded. She pointed out that the borough is already

SFC- 01 (7) 05/ 05/ 01



fundi ng nost of its school system and she asked if noney woul d be
taken away from education or if state funds woul d be appropriated
for a survey.

Ms. Bale spoke to page 2, line 19, "By Septenber, 1, 2010, the
Denal i Borough shall |ease the |and received under this section to
a person for a railroad devel opnent project.” She wanted to know
how this person would be selected and whether there would be a
conpetitive bidding process at that tine.

Ms. Bale commented that a Denali task force has been cited as
supporting a northern access to the park, but stressed she
di sagreed with this claim To denonstrate, she read froma report
on the issue generated by the task force, "Wile all task force
menbers felt strongly that new opportunities to experience the
national park should be provided, a mgjority felt that the
reconmended alternative, primarily on the south side, would in part
nmeet future demands. The north route is also perceived to be |ess
cost effective and | ess consistent with maintaining the primtive
character of Kantishna. The approval of north access in this
docunent was a mnority opinion."

Co-Chair Kelly addressed the witness's question regarding "person",
explaining this is a legal termthat could apply to a person or a
corporation. He said that when an individual person is referenced
in statute, the correct |anguage is "individual."

Ms. Bale again asked if the bill allows for a conpetitive process
in the | ease of the right-of-way |and.

Representative Janes responded that the process in requesting a
right-of-way is by application rather then a request by the state
for conpetitive bids. She noted that in this legislation the reason
"person” is used instead of Kantishna Holdings, Inc. is in the
event that the corporation fails and another party is interested in
the project before the deadline of 2010. She stated there woul d be
a public process on this issue.

Representative Janes addressed the funding of the |and survey,
sayi ng the funds woul d probably cone froma source other then the
borough if the borough could not afford it. She noted federal funds
could be available, provided state matching funds were
appropri at ed.

Senator Ward shared his conversation with Denali Borough mayor and
former Al aska Representative, John Gonzales and the assurances
given that the borough is "capable of handling the public process.™
Senator Ward shared that the mayor asked that the | egislature "have

SFC- 01 (8) 05/ 05/ 01



faith” in the borough to determine its best interest.

Co-Chair Kelly asked M. Loeffler if language is contained in the
| egi slation that protects traditional access across the right-of-
ways.

M. Loeffler replied that the bill "indicates" that the corridor
shall protect existing rights. He noted that a Departnent of
Nat ural Resources best interest finding would address the matter.

Senat or Hof f man asked about the cabins previously discussed.

M. Loeffler qualified that it is not guaranteed there would be no
i npact but that users of these cabins would have access through the
corridor.

Senator Ward offered a notion to nove from Commttee SCS CS HB 244
(RES) with $16,800 fiscal note from the Departnment of Natural
Resour ces.

Wt hout objection the bill MOVED from Committee.
AT EASE 9:57 AM/ 1:20 PM
#HB65

SENATE CS FOR CS FOR HOUSE BI LL NO. 65( HES)

"An Act relating to a new optional group of persons eligible
for medical assistance who require treatnent for breast or
cervical cancer; and providing for an effective date."

This was the first hearing for this bill in the Senate Finance
Commi ttee.

Senator Green noved to adopt SCS CS HB 65 (HES) as a working draft.
Wt hout objection it was ADOPTED.

Senator Green spoke to the Senate Health, Education and Soci al
Services conmttee substitute, noting the bill had been discussed
extensively in that commttee. She informed that this |egislation
is an extension to the Medicaid program

Senat or Green pointed out changes nade to the original bill, the
first being a limtation that no nore than $175, 800 general funds
could be spent in FY 02 on services for eligible persons who have
been di agnosed with breast or cervical cancer. She added that no
nore than $189, 500 general funds could be spent for these services
in FY 03. She noted these anounts were requested by the Departnent

SFC- 01 (9) 05/ 05/ 01



of Health and Soci al Services.

Senator Green told of the second change made in the conmttee
substitute regarding reporting requirenents fromthe Departnent of
Health and Social Services to the legislature indicating whether
envi ronnent al , behavioral or genetic factors were associated with
the onset of these illnesses. She indicated press rel eases state
that these cancers are "epidemcs” in A aska. She remarked that the
intent of this provision is to inform the public of any
correlations and tell of actions that could be taken to prevent
t hese ill nesses.

Senat or Green spoke to questions regarding the anmount of noney
all oned for each patient. She shared there has been a discrepancy
bet ween the anount allotted per person and the actual expenses for
treatnment services. She stated the commttee substitute stipul ates
t he Departnent of Health and Social Services provides a breakdown
of how much noney was spent on each patient.

Co-Chair Kelly asked if qualification for Medicaid remains at 250
percent of the poverty |evel.

Senator Green affirnmed.
AT EASE 1:25 PM/ 1:25 PM

Senat or Lenman responded to press reports published in the Anchorage
Daily News regarding the hearings held on this bill in the Senate
Heal t h, Education and Social Services Conmittee. He shared that an
article quotes Comm ssioner Karen Perdue, of the Departnent of
Heal th and Social Services, as saying ".There's no way in hell that
gover nnment should be snooping in private matters of wonen."

SFC 01 # 97, Side B 01:25 PM

Senat or Leman acknow edged that the newspaper did not quote him
properly on this matter and that it was therefore possible that the
comm ssioner was msquoted as well. He asserted however that, if
accurate, this is an inappropriate statenment for a conm ssioner to
make. He said this is especially true because this information nust
be coll ected under the federal Medicaid requirenents.

Senator Leman relayed that in the Senate Health, Education and
Social Services Commttee, he asserted, "W’ re not |ooking to snoop
in the lives of wonen, but we want to know, if Al aska wonen are
getting breast and cervical cancer at higher rates then the rest of
the country; we want to know why and if there are things that we
can do to change the environnment, change what's happening i n Al aska
to reduce those chances, then we ought to identify them™

SFC-01 (10) 05/ 05/ 01



Senator Leman assured the study would not be conducted by the
| egi slature but rather by the Departnment of Health and Soci al
Services would release information generated by the Nation
Institute of Cancer and other organi zations in the field.

Senat or Leman commented that the action taken in the Senate Health,
Education and Social Services Commttee was intended to be "very
positive, constructive; helping wonen in Alaska” but was
interpreted by sonme and being m srepresented "as sonething else.”

Senator Lenman stated that, while he is not an expert on nedicine or
cancer, he does "care about wonen in Al aska" and the fight against
cancer. He shared that he has lost famly nenbers to cancer and to
breast cancer, which has had a "profound effect”™ on him and his
famly. Therefore, he asserted that when "others m srepresent what
we're trying to do, it hurts.”

Senator Lenman reiterated that this legislation is "a positive step”
and surm sed that Al askans should benefit fromit.

Senator Geen offered a notion to nove SCS CS HB 65 (HES) from
Committee wth acconpanying $598,200 fiscal note from the
Departnent of Health and Social Services.

The bill MOVED from Commttee without objection

AT EASE 1:28 PM/ 1:30 PM

RECESS TO THE CALL OF THE CHAIR 1:30 PM/ 9:07 PM

#
ADJ QURNVENT

Co-Chair Pete Kelly adjourned the neeting at 09: 07 PM

SFC-01 (11) 05/ 05/ 01



